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POPLAR HIGH STREET : 61

Emslie’s views in the 1870s show how much the High
Street was then a shopping street (Plates 3a, 151a). But
they probably show a street where retail prosperity was
already in decline. Commentators attributed this to the
departure of street-traders and costermongers to Chrisp
Street, from the late 1860s onwards.” The removal of
the Poplar Railway Station to East India Dock Road in
1865—6 had probably made matters worse. By 1895 the
City Press called it ‘one of the worst paying thoroughfares
in London’.®* From 1872 to 1900 few new shopfronts are
noticed in the district surveyor’s returns. There was then
some increase, to 1915. But the Inland Revenue’s valuer
was driven to constant comment in his assessments of
1909—15 that this was ‘a bad business street’.®

As for the shops themselves, by the 1930s they shared
one predominant characteristic with the rest of London’s
humbler shops: the division of the ground floor between
the shop itself at the front and a separate ‘shop parlour’
behind, whence the proprietor would emerge at the tinkle
of the shop bell. Access to the shop parlour and the
rooms above was usually via the shop not via a separate
street-door. Some shops of this kind were of very simple
design. No. 22, built in 1876, had its shop parlour as its
only living-room and of the two bedrooms above one
opened out of the other.®

Taverns were an early feature of Poplar, doubtless
because of its function as a waiting place for water-borne

travellers. Seven alehouses were licensed in Poplar in-

1519% and six (all to ‘yeomen’) in Poplar as distinct from
Blackwall in mid-century.® In the early to mid-nineteenth
century the High Street had about seventeen licensed
public houses plus eight beershops.”” The publican was
sometimes a man of enterprise and some of the street’s
lamentable back-courts were generated in the yards of
public houses. Some taverns were licensed for music and
dancing: in the late 1860s there were four of these, all
on the north side.® At least two had rooms set aside for
the purpose, and one of these (later the Queen’s Theatre)
developed into a full-blown music hall with the audi-
“torium and bars conveniently adjacent. In the 1880s and
1890s about a third of all the building work in the street
was given to its public houses,” and between 1894 and
1899 three (the Spotted Dog, the White Hart and the
Blakeney’s Head) were rebuilt.*® One public house, the
White Horse, rebuilt in 1927-8, retains the name and
site it had in 1690. '

The public houses latterly stood out from their neigh-
bours by reason of their relatively good repair. In surveys
taken in rgog—15 the Inland Revenue’s valuer found
seven out of ten buildings in the street to be in bad
condition,” and in the mid-1930s rebuilding along the
street was given priority by Poplar Borough Council
because of the dilapidation of the properties.”” This began
to alter the character of the street, which was further
eroded when more than a third of the houses were either
destroyed or seriously damaged during the Second World
War 9

North Side

Nos 1 and 3 (demolished). The houses shown in about
1goo on Plate 2a were probably built or rebuilt in the
1840s following the acquisition of property here by Julius
Natorff, a surgeon of Limehouse, who occupied No. 3
for many years. A horseflesh salesman, Mr McEwen, had
been there only since 1899, but a hairdresser, G. Ablard,
had been at No. 1 since the early 1860s.%

The White Horse public house at Nos 9 and 11. The
present public house was erected in 19278 by the builder
H. V. Clogg of Battersea to designs by A. E. Sewell for
Truman, Hanbury & Buxton, brewers (Plate g40c).”> The
site comprised No. 11, which had long been in use as a
tavern, and No. g, at the corner of North (now Saltwell)

" Street, which had previously been in separate occupation

and prior to 1831 had accommodated the hamlet and
parish watch-house.”® Stylistically the present house is

-very like other Truman’s houses of the period, such as

the Bancroft in the Mile End Road.

There has been a tavern here with the present name
since 1690 or earlier.”” It was a good situation, close to
the entrance to Poplar on the way to Blackwall and at
the junction of the High Street with North Street, and
overlooking the watering-place of Stonebridge pond (the
position of which is still hinted at by the space in front
of the White Horse).

The old White Horse was refronted or rebuilt in staid
mid-Victorian classic style, perhaps about 1868—0. The
freehold was bought by a Leutenant in the Hampshire
Regiment in 1891 for £3,750 and sold by him to Trumans
in 1921 for £4,350.% :

The sign of a white horse on a square post stood in
front of the public house until 1993 (Plate 40e). Of lead,
painted and filled with sand, it was modelled with greaz
verve but had no known history and was difhcult to date
stylistically: the early to mid-eighteenth century might
be suggested. In 1874 the lessee protested strongly and
successfully to the Metropolitan Board of Works that to
remove it. ‘would be fatal to the business’.®

Nos 13 and 13A (demolished). The date of the build-
ings shown on Plate 4c is quite uncertain, although their
site, together with that of No. 15, can be identified as

- belonging to the manor of Stepney in 1620, and as having

a tenement on it in 1702 that replaced four cottages
recently burnt. In 1767 it was owned by the Paillets,
businessmen in Southwark and the City." It was still
owned by members of the family in 1828, when a lease
for 21 years was granted of the two messuages on
the site to John Gagen, a saddler, who undertook ‘the
substantially reinstating and repairing’ of the mes-
suages. "

No. 15 (demolished). This house was built in 1854 by
Mary Ann Wood & Sons of Mile End for the owner, the
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a (above). The Greenwich Pensioner, Bazely Street, 1827, in
1986 (pp. 186—7)

b (right). The Manor Arms, East India Dock Road, c1925, in
1986 (p. 156)

d (above). Hope and Anchor, Newby Place,

1938, in 1g9g0 (p. 182)

¢ (above left), e. The White Horse, Poplar High
Street, 1927-8, in 1986 (p. 61)
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